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May	1,	2017		

Dear	Secretary	Hanna	Skandera,	

Albuquerque	Public	Schools	(APS)	is	in	urgent	need	of	a	response	from	the	Public	Education	Department	
regarding	its	K‐3	Plus	program	for	the	summer	of	2017.	

APS	was	very	appreciative	of	the	2016	K‐3	Plus	award	of	$6,155,660.93.	However,	as	confirmed	in	an	email	
from	Michael	Miller	on	April	28,	2017	and	Paul	Aguilar	on	May	1,	2017,	PED	allocated	APS	$3,669,968.67	for	
K‐3	Plus	for	summer	of	2017	–	a	roughly	40%	reduction	in	funding.		This	award	reduction	means	APS	will	be	
able	to	serve	fewer	students	in	the	summer	of	2017	with	K‐3	Plus	funds.		While	we	are	disappointed	that	the	
2017	award	is	much	less	than	the	amount	APS	requested	in	our	application,	we	are	still	eager	to	provide	a	
quality	K‐3	plus	program	for	our	children.		

Based	on	this	funding	reduction,	we	are	faced	with	difficult	decisions	regarding	administration	of	the	K‐3	Plus	
program	for	summer	of	2017.		APS	is	working	diligently	to	ensure	that	we	run	a	quality	K‐3	Plus	program	this	
summer.			

If	we	were	to	continue	to	serve	32	school	locations	as	originally	requested	in	our	K‐3	Plus	grant	application,		
we	would	not	be	able	to	match	the	K‐3	Plus	classroom	teachers	to	the	classroom	teachers	in	the	fall,	and	we	
would	need	to	reduce	the	number	of	classrooms	at	each	site.	This	is	less	efficient,	and	counter	to	the	K‐3	Plus	
philosophy.		APS	believes	this	is	not	in	the	best	interest	of	students	nor	is	it	in	the	best	interest	of	our	
investment	in	K‐3	Plus.	

Therefore,	in	order	to	gain	efficiency	due	to	scale,	APS	is	requesting	permission	to	use	its	entire	
$3,669,968.67	award	to	implement	a	K‐3	Plus	program	that	serves	the	allowable	number	of	students,	but	at	
fewer	school	locations.	We	intend	to	focus	on	our	high	priority	schools	if	our	request	is	granted.		

Due	to	pressing	timelines	to	alert	APS	families	about	the	availability	of	K‐3	Plus	programs	at	their	child’s	
school,	could	you	please	respond	as	soon	as	possible	to	our	request?	It	would	be	very	helpful	to	receive	your	
response	by	Wednesday,	May	3,	2017.			

Please	contact	me	if	you	have	additional	questions.	

Thank	you	for	your	consideration.	

Sincerely,	

Raquel	M.	Reedy	
Superintendent	

	c:			Paul	Aguilar,	Deputy	Secretary	
		Christopher	Ruszkowski,	Deputy	Secretary	
		Troy	Hughes	
		Diane	Kerschen	
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HANNA SKANDERA 
SECRETARY OF EDUCATION  

         SUSANA MARTINEZ 
G O V E R N O R  

May 3, 2017 

Superintendent Raquel Reedy 

6400 Uptown Blvd., NE, Suite 600E 

Albuquerque, NM 87125 

Dear Superintendent Reedy: 

The Public Education Department (PED) is in receipt of your request to allow Albuquerque 

Public Schools (APS) the ability to determine the allocation of funding for the K-3+ program 

for the summer of 2017 to certain schools.  In considering your request and in order to respond 

accordingly, we must first correct an assertion and clarify the circumstances from your request 

letter dated May 1, 2017: 

1) The PED did not award APS $6,155,660.93 for K-3 Plus programming in FY16.

Rather, APS was awarded $4,852,222.30.  To be clear, for FY16, APS knowingly over-

enrolled (beyond what was requested and budgeted) the program by nearly 28%.  After

the fact, the PED was asked by APS to help with those additional expenses.  Keeping the

best interest of students in mind, the PED provided $1,303,438.63 in additional funding.

2) FY16 is not the only instance when APS drastically miscalculated student enrollment for

their application.  APS has either significantly over-projected or under-projected student

enrollment by at least 18% in each of the past three years:

Projected 
Enrollment 

Final 
Enrollment 

% above or below 
projection 

Summer of '14 5,889 4,052 31.2% 

Summer of '15 5,214 4,286 17.8% 

Summer of '16 3,887 4,963 -27.7%

Thus, your request to allow APS additional flexibility to prioritize certain schools eligible for 

K-3 Plus to serve students through this program is under consideration pending the district

http://www.sde.state.nm.us/


submitting a plan to the PED. This plan should articulate the number of funded K-3 Plus 

participants, the school sites where the K-3 Plus programs will be conducted and the district’s 

rationale for prioritizing some sites over others.  Please reference state statute as necessary as 

you construct your plan.    

If, as you note, “due to pressing timelines to alert APS families about the availability of K-3 

Plus programs at their child’s school” and your district’s eagerness “to provide a quality K-3 

plus program for our children”, then it is critical that APS consider other revenue sources to 

fund the number of seats requested by the district.  It is important to note that APS carried over 

almost $8 million in unused Title I funds from FY16 into this school year—these dollars can be 

used by APS to fund its demand for K-3 Plus seats right now.  The PED has collaborated with 

other districts to leverage Title I funds, the 2 percent K-3 Plus set-aside, operational cash 

balances, and FY18 operational funding (which has increased from last year’s allocation 

statewide and thus in APS)  for use in serving the maximum number of students through this 

important program.   

In your plan, please include funding sources other than the K-3 Plus grant award for the 

students in your plan and how your district can keep the program whole.  Please submit your 

plan to my office no later than May 8
th

, 2017.

Thank you in advance for your prompt attention to this matter 

Regards, 

Hipolito J. Aguilar 

Deputy Secretary,  Finance and Operations 

cc:   

Hanna Skandera, Secretary 

Christopher Ruszkowski, Deputy Secretary, Policy & Program 
































